
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – June 21, 2021              1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, June 21, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held at the Twin Creek Nature Area.  
Located on Recreation Avenue, near the North Entrance of the Osceola County 

Fairgrounds, Evart, Michigan.  
 

In the event of rain, the Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room of the 
Osceola County Fairgrounds, 101 Recreation Ave. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion (roll-call vote) without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or 
public may ask that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for 
discussion. All such requests will be granted.  
B.  Regular Council Minutes – June 7, 2021 
C.  Requesting Approval for Budget Amendments  
D.  Vendor’s List $46,735.64 

 
6. Unfinished Business  

E.  Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program (postpone) 
F.  Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
 

7. New Business 
Items for Action: 
G.  Matt Biolette – Republic Services Representative  
H.  Planning Commission Appointment – Rebecca Tea (2-year term)  
 I.  Attitude Wellness – Marihuana Application Extension  
J.  Letter of Understanding – Teamsters and the City of Evart  
K. City Manager Evaluation  

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager:  Sarah Dvoracek 

City of Evart 
5814 100th Avenue 
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 

Sarah Dvoracek 
c: (231) 580-6516 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – June 21, 2021              2 
 

8. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
L.  Accounts Payable Report (6/8/2021 – 6/21/2021) 
M.  Payroll Reports (6/8/2021 – 6/21/2021) 
N.  Summary of all Funds – May 2021 
 

9. City Attorney Report/Comment 
 

10. City Clerk Report/Comment 
      
11. City Manager Report/Comment       

O.  July 3rd Independence Celebration – Parade/Party in the Park/Fireworks  
P.  Nestle changed name to BlueTriton Brands, Inc. – FYI  

 
12. Finance Director Report/Comment 

Q.  Department of Treasury – Local Development Finance Authority/Non-Compliance  
           R.  Department of Treasury – Downtown Development Authority/Non-Compliance  
 

13. Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
S.  Monthly Report – May 2021 

 
14. Police Department Report/Comment 

T.  Monthly Report – May 2021 
 

15. Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
U.  Downtown Development Authority Receives Grant – Public Engagement Meeting                        
scheduled for July 7, 2021, at 6:00pm at the Osceola County Fairgrounds  
V.  Downtown Development Authority Meeting Packet – May 11, 2021 
W. Downtown Development Authority Financials – April 2021  

 
16. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  

 
17. Adjournment  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Documents to be signed after council meeting:  

 Letter of Understanding – Teamsters and the City of Evart 



1 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 6.7.2021 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday June 7, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
Community Building at the Osceola County Fairgrounds 

101 Recreation Ave, Evart MI 49631 
 
 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Emerick at 8:00pm. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Mayor Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
 
Present (City staff): City Manager Sarah Dvoracek, Finance Director/Treasurer Pepper Lockhart, Chief of 
Police John Beam Jr., City Attorney James White, City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests (per sign in sheet): Jim Schwab, Sandy Keller, Angela Hunter, Eli Walters, Erica Henry, Todd Elkins 
 
Citizens’ Comments: Sandy Keller lives in Hersey but does everything Evart.  She knows there’s some 
negativity regarding having the fireworks this year but believes that it would be positive for the 
community to have them anyway.  She asked that council make it happen as everyone needs the boost. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Ms. Dvoracek added the May 17, 2021 minutes, the appointment of Sandra Szeliga and Erica Henry to 
the Downtown Development Authority Board, and the updated strategic plan to the agenda.  Motion by 
Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda with these three additions.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion 
passed with all were in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
B. Regular Virtual Council Minutes – May 17, 2021 (sent Friday 6/4/2021) 
C. Special Council Meeting Minutes – May 27, 2021 
D. Special Council Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2021 
E. Special Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2021 
F. Requesting Approval for Budget Amendments 
G. Vendor’s List $50,689.41 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion 
passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished business 
H. Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program (postpone) 
I.  Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
 
New Business 
Items for Action 
J.   Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Board Appointments – Shannon Schmidt and Jason O’Dell 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to reappoint Jason O’Dell and Shannon Schmidt to four-year terms on the 
DDA Board with terms expiring in 2025 and to appoint Erica Henry and Sandra Szeliga to one-year terms 
on the DDA Board with terms expiring in 2022. Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
K.  Planning Commission appointments - Ruth Ann Northon and Karen Higgins 



2 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 6.7.2021 
 

Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to reappoint Ruth Ann Northon to a one-year term (expiring in 2022) on the 
Planning Commission ad Karen Higgins to a two-year term (expiring in 2023).   Support by Mayor 
Emerick.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
L.  Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Budget Amendments 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the DDA budget amendments as presented.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 
M. Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 2021-2022 Proposed Budget 
Mr. Hildebrand noted that the budget had decreased significantly, and Ms. Dvoracek explained that 
$8,000 had been moved to a separate account for the Farmers Market, and that revenue was down 
during 2020 as concerts and other special events were canceled due to COVID.  Motion by Mr. Elliott to 
approve the DDA budget for fiscal year 2021-2022 as presented.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion 
passed with all in favor. 
N. Sewer Credit Request – 421 South Pine Street 
Mr. Duffy noted that a previous request for a water credit had been denied by council and wondered 
why this request should be considered.  Ms. Dvoracek explained that the earlier request was a dispute 
over water usage and that the city was not able to determine that the water had NOT been used.  In this 
case, a broken pipe was involved, and the water did not enter the sewer system.  City staff was able to 
verify the broken pipe and determine the water did not enter the sewer system The customer must still 
pay for the excess water usage, but since the water did not enter the sewer system, it’s appropriate to 
waive the excess sewer charge.  City staff followed Sewer Credit Policy number 2019-06 (approved by 
city council on September 16, 2019) by requesting sewer credit that exceed five hundred dollars to be 
approved by city council.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the sewer credit request for 421 S. Pine 
Street.  Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with Mayor Emerick, Mr. Hildebrand, Ms. Szeliga and Mr. 
Elliott in favor.  Mr. Duffy was opposed. 
O. July 4th Chamber Presentation 
On behalf of the Evart Chamber of Commerce, Chief of Police John Beam Jr. presented a plan for a 3rd of 
July parade, Party in the Park and fireworks display at the airport.  He noted that the Evart police 
department is currently understaffed and that he could only have two officers present at these events.  
His request for additional personnel to the Michigan State Police, Osceola County Sheriff’s Department, 
and Osceola County Emergency Service was denied by all agencies.  He reported that the Evart Fire 
Department and the Chamber have said they will provide adequate volunteers for all events but noted 
that if a fire occurs, the department will have to respond.  Interim Department of Public Works (DPW) 
Administrator Fiebig noted that DPW is also understaffed and that while the City will provide barricades 
for the parade and for parking for the fireworks, she cannot commit any personnel during the fireworks. 
Ms. Dvoracek also voiced her concerns about how only two officers can ensure the public’s safety. 
Dvoracek noted that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will no longer allow the public to park on 
airport property during the fireworks, so adequate supervision of parking is critical.  Per FAA 
requirements, the runway must be continually policed for firework debris during and after the show, as 
well.  She had asked permission to close the airport for the evening and that request was denied.  She 
also noted that it’s unlikely that MDOT will approve a request to close US10 for the parade as it takes at 
least 30 days to process such requests and suggested modifying the parade route instead.  The parade 
would start at 7 Mile Road and N. Main Street as usual and move south, then turn west on 5th Street, 
ending at the Fairgrounds.   
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the 3rd of July parade with the amended route avoiding use of 
US10.  Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with all in favor.  Motion by Mr. Duffy to approve the 3rd of 
July Party in the Park.  Support by Ms. Szeliga.  Motion passed with all in favor.  Motion by Mr. Duffy to 
approve the Chamber’s fireworks plan as presented.  Support by Ms. Szeliga.  Motion passed with all in 
favor. 



3 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 6.7.2021 
 

 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
P. Accounts Payable Report (5/18/2021 – 6/7/2021) 
Q. Payroll Reports (5/18/2021 – 6/7/2021) 
R. Revenue and Expense Report – May 2021 
S. Fire Department Minutes – May 11, 2021 
 
City Attorney Report/Comment 
Mr. White and Ms. Dvoracek are still working with Attitude Wellness on a potential land swap in the 
Industrial Park.   
City Clerk Report/Comment: none 
City Manager Report/Comment 
T. Personal Property Summary Report 2021 – FYI 
U. New Horizon Humane Society – FYI 
V. City of Evart Water System Approval/EGLE – FYI 
W. Michigan State Historic Preservation Office Certificate – FYI 
X. Department of Public Works Director – FYI 
Y. Perchlorate Update – FYI 
Ms. Dvoracek advised council that Gerber Construction will begin the lead line replacement project on 
August 2.  This had been scheduled to begin in early spring with completion in early July. 
Finance Director Report/Comment 
Ms. Lockhart noted that the sidewalk inventory has been completed. 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
Ms. Fiebig noted that the Splash Pad has been reopened and that DPW assisted with planting a number 
of trees throughout the City.   
Police Department Report/Comment 
Chief Beam noted that the department has issued 90 ordinance violation notices.  He is working on 
filling the current officer vacancies and is compiling the department’s annual report. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment: none 
 
Citizens’ Comments:  
Jim Schwab noted that the Evart varsity boys’ baseball team and girl’s softball team both won their 
respective district titles. This is a very positive achievement and he would like the City to applaud that.  It 
has been twenty years since the girl’s softball team has won the title.   
Todd Elkins introduced himself as the new editor of the Talk of the Town magazine and noted that the 
first issue will be out in July.  He wants it to be a positive force in the community. 
Elijah Walters noted that while walking in Riverside Park with his baby he noticed that the playground 
and splash pad are designed for older children and hopes the City will consider adding some facilities for 
younger youth.  There are some aging swings that he believes should be checked for safety. 
Sandy Keller asked if she “got it right” and everything for the 3rd was really approved.  Mr. Hildebrand 
assured her that that was the case and reminded her that this is the Chamber of Commerce’s event, not 
the City’s.  Ms. Keller also stated that her office for Michigan Potash has moved from Affordable Prints to 
971 120th avenue which is right across the road from where the plant will be built.  She noted that COVID 
has slowed the project down, but the project has not stopped and is still moving forward. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with all in favor. The 
meeting adjourned at 8:53pm. 
 



4 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 6.7.2021 
 

 
 
______________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig    City Clerk 







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 06/17/2021 07:28 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

4,206.44 FIRST BANKCARD1827610(E)75106/15/2021
4,546.00 ACCIDENT FUND16443853075106/21/2021

532.00 BARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR11823853175106/21/2021
374.90 CADILLAC NEWS02983853275106/21/2021
600.00 CITY OF EVART AIRPORT RENT9993853375106/21/2021
275.00 CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS9343853475106/21/2021

2,774.05 CONSUMERS ENERGY00243853575106/21/2021
315.00 DELTA COLLEGE 9143853675106/21/2021

1,140.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC10353853775106/21/2021
297.95 DTE ENERGY05763853875106/21/2021

1,375.00 DUBOIS-COOPER11373853975106/21/2021
308.15 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773854075106/21/2021
221.53 HURON VALLEY GUNS11383854175106/21/2021
23.98 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS08763854275106/21/2021
796.05 MEDLER ELECTRONIC CO 7233854375106/21/2021
755.00 MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOC06103854475106/21/2021
200.00 OSCEOLA 4-H AND FFA FAIR14593854575106/21/2021
155.00 OSCEOLA COUNTY - CMDHD4223854675106/21/2021
481.54 PIONEER GROUP02553854775106/21/2021

10,026.03 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063854875106/21/2021
122.92 SCHAEFFER MFG. CO. 10133854975106/21/2021
696.44 SHORE NURSERY01323855075106/21/2021
57.76 SINGLESOURCE20353855175106/21/2021

2,075.52 SLC METER, LLC19803855275106/21/2021
772.71 SMITH LUMBER CO01293855375106/21/2021
212.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL15793855475106/21/2021
66.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN13093855575106/21/2021
62.39 XEROX CORPORATION18033855675106/21/2021
20.00 AFFORDABLE PRINTS1858611(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 DVORACEK, SARAH1978612(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 FLACHS, MICHAEL994613(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 JOHN BEAM JR.1419614(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 MARTIN, DALE1330615(A)75106/21/2021

1,438.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE1169616(A)75106/21/2021
6,079.17 MR. ELECTRIC OF CNTRL MICH & SAGINA907617(A)75106/21/2021

40.00 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK1501618(A)75106/21/2021
45.99 PATRICK MCCLURE314619(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 PEPPER LOCKHART1069620(A)75106/21/2021

4,934.00 SHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING450621(A)75106/21/2021
469.12 USA BLUE BOOK0740622(A)75106/21/2021
40.00 ZINGER, ADAM469623(A)75106/21/2021

751 TOTALS:

46,735.64 Total of 41 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
46,735.64 Total of 41 Checks:



AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick and Council Members 
From:  Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 
Date:  June 15, 2021 
Re:  Appointment to Planning Commission 
 
For the Agenda of June 21, 2021 
____________________________________________________ 
 
Background:  The Planning Commission has recommended that Rebecca Tea be reappointed 
to a two-year term.  
 
Issues and Questions Specified 
Per City Charter, members of City of Evart boards and commissions are appointed by the mayor 
and confirmed by council.  Planning Commission terms are for three years, but the Commission 
is currently out of compliance with the requirement to have terms staggered.  The shorter 
appointment corrects that issue. 
 
Alternatives: 
 1. Do nothing. 
 
Financial Impact:  
 None. 
 
Recommendation:  Reappoint Rebecca Tea to a two-year term on the Planning Commission, 
with the term to expire in 2023. 
 
Attachments:  
  None 
 
 

 



























































































CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

123.95 101-000-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSEFIRST BANKCARD610(E)75106/15/2021

49.00 101-203-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING610(E)

39.00 101-242-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING610(E)

19.62 101-265-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES610(E)

46.45 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONS610(E)

167.74 101-301-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

185.57 101-301-746.000Community Policing Fund610(E)

44.33 101-301-758.006UNIFORMS610(E)

429.67 101-301-768.000OFC DOUGLAS UNIFORM ALLOW610(E)

416.50 101-301-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING610(E)

124.39 101-301-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE610(E)

42.37 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT610(E)

35.59 101-441-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE610(E)

37.18 101-442-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE610(E)

19.62 590-537-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES610(E)

18.53 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

46.45 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS610(E)

99.50 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING610(E)

73.73 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

19.62 591-545-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES610(E)

18.52 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

(400.00)591-545-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUES610(E)

46.46 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS610(E)

99.50 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING610(E)

953.73 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

1,449.42 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES610(E)

4,206.44 

909.20 101-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEACCIDENT FUND3853075106/21/2021

318.22 202-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE38530

272.76 203-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE38530

1,545.64 590-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE38530

1,500.18 591-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE38530

4,546.00 

532.00 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITBARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR3853175106/21/2021

187.45 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGCADILLAC NEWS3853275106/21/2021

187.45 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38532

374.90 

200.00 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESCITY OF EVART AIRPORT RENT3853375106/21/2021

200.00 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38533

200.00 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38533

600.00 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

275.00 101-301-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGCITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS3853475106/21/2021

355.56 101-441-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY3853575106/21/2021

1,997.80 101-448-921.000UTILITIES38535

251.88 202-461-921.000UTILITIES38535

123.59 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38535

45.22 591-546-921.000UTILITIES38535

2,774.05 

315.00 101-301-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGDELTA COLLEGE3853675106/21/2021

700.00 101-210-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESDICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC3853775106/21/2021

440.00 101-301-801.301Attorney Fees - Police38537

1,140.00 

59.08 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3853875106/21/2021

95.26 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38538

143.61 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38538

297.95 

1,375.00 590-538-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDUBOIS-COOPER3853975106/21/2021

21.72 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEHOMETOWN HARDWARE3854075106/21/2021

26.56 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38540

11.53 101-441-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38540

143.89 101-444-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38540

22.87 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38540

21.72 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38540

59.86 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38540

308.15 

221.53 101-301-758.006UNIFORMSHURON VALLEY GUNS3854175106/21/2021

7.99 101-265-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIESINTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS3854275106/21/2021

7.99 590-537-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES38542

8.00 591-545-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES38542

23.98 

796.05 101-301-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEMEDLER ELECTRONIC CO3854375106/21/2021

755.00 590-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEMICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOC3854475106/21/2021

200.00 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESOSCEOLA 4-H AND FFA FAIR3854575106/21/2021

155.00 208-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEOSCEOLA COUNTY - CMDHD3854675106/21/2021

18.64 101-441-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP3854775106/21/2021

231.45 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38547

231.45 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38547



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

481.54 

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393854875106/21/2021

9,692.03 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38548

90.00 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38548

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38548

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38548

10,026.03 

122.92 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSCHAEFFER MFG. CO.3854975106/21/2021

348.22 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESHORE NURSERY3855075106/21/2021

348.22 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38550

696.44 

19.26 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSINGLESOURCE3855175106/21/2021

19.25 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38551

19.25 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38551

57.76 

2,075.52 591-547-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDSLC METER, LLC3855275106/21/2021

2.82 101-301-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3855375106/21/2021

542.67 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38553

40.98 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38553

3.99 101-441-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38553

24.16 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38553

2.59 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38553

26.24 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38553

11.28 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38553

26.23 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38553

91.75 591-547-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38553

772.71 

95.00 101-265-840.000PHYSICALSSPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL3855475106/21/2021

117.00 591-545-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST38554

212.00 

66.00 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSTATE OF MICHIGAN3855575106/21/2021

62.39 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITXEROX CORPORATION3855675106/21/2021

20.00 101-441-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGAFFORDABLE PRINTS611(A)75106/21/2021

40.00 101-172-850.000COMMUNICATIONSDVORACEK, SARAH612(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSFLACHS, MICHAEL613(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS613(A)



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

40.00 

40.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSJOHN BEAM JR.614(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMARTIN, DALE615(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS615(A)

40.00 

479.33 101-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE616(A)75106/21/2021

479.33 590-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE616(A)

479.34 591-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLE616(A)

1,438.00 

345.12 207-751-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMR. ELECTRIC OF CNTRL MICH &
SAGINA

617(A)75106/21/2021

3,305.93 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE617(A)

1,214.06 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES617(A)

1,214.06 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES617(A)

6,079.17 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMUCZYNSKI, PATRICK618(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS618(A)

40.00 

45.99 101-301-726.000K-9 RELATED EXPENSESPATRICK MCCLURE619(A)75106/21/2021

40.00 101-203-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPEPPER LOCKHART620(A)75106/21/2021

4,934.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING621(A)75106/21/2021

469.12 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESUSA BLUE BOOK622(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSZINGER, ADAM623(A)75106/21/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS623(A)

40.00 

        219.26 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

         27.61 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000

         39.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-242-741.000

        700.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-210-801.000

         49.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-203-957.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-203-850.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-172-850.000

        123.95 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE101-000-955.000

      1,388.53 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE101-000-202.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 

46,735.64 TOTAL OF 41 CHECKSTOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

        143.61 UTILITIES590-538-921.000

         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

      1,307.04 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000

        518.40 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000

        126.45 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000

        244.77 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-537-740.000

         27.61 OFFICE SUPPLIES590-537-727.000

      2,779.97 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE590-000-202.000

         90.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES209-276-801.000

        123.59 UTILITIES208-757-921.000

        155.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE208-000-202.000

      3,678.46 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000

        345.12 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES207-751-801.000

         47.03 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-751-740.000

        272.76 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE203-000-202.000

        251.88 UTILITIES202-461-921.000

        318.22 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE202-000-202.000

      9,692.03 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

      1,997.80 UTILITIES101-448-921.000

        143.89 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-444-740.000

         37.18 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-442-930.000

         51.11 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-441-930.000

        355.56 UTILITIES101-441-921.000

         38.64 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-441-900.000

        129.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000

         67.54 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000

        912.61 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-440-930.000

         95.26 UTILITIES101-440-921.000

      4,934.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000

        200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000

        590.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-301-957.000

        636.76 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000

        923.26 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-301-930.000

         59.08 UTILITIES101-301-921.000

        416.50 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-301-900.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000

        440.00 Attorney Fees - Police101-301-801.301

         66.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-301-801.000

        429.67 OFC DOUGLAS UNIFORM ALLOW101-301-768.000

        265.86 UNIFORMS101-301-758.006

        185.57 Community Policing Fund101-301-746.000

        167.74 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-301-740.000

         45.99 K-9 RELATED EXPENSES101-301-726.000

         46.45 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000

         95.00 PHYSICALS101-265-840.000



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/6Page
:

06/17/2021 07:27 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 06/08/2021 - 06/21/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

     46,735.64 TOTAL

      1,632.20 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000

      2,075.52 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED591-547-970.100

         91.75 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-547-930.000

         45.22 UTILITIES591-546-921.000

         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000

      2,656.16 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000

        518.40 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000

        126.46 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000

        117.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST591-545-840.000

       (400.00)MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-545-807.000

        244.75 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-545-740.000

         27.62 OFFICE SUPPLIES591-545-727.000

      1,979.52 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE591-000-202.000

      1,375.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED590-538-970.100

         11.28 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-538-930.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 06/08/2021 to 06/21/2021 

06/17/2021 03:21 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Open0.00175.76175.76MISDU          2318275006/16/2021

Cleared719.190.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD562975006/16/2021

Cleared547.280.00731.60 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD563075006/16/2021

Cleared1,355.210.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD563175006/16/2021

Cleared559.630.00692.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD563275006/16/2021

Cleared430.710.00721.60 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD563375006/16/2021

Cleared381.940.00459.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD563475006/16/2021

Cleared789.380.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD563575006/16/2021

Cleared564.970.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD563675006/16/2021

Cleared583.910.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD563775006/16/2021

Cleared171.600.00210.00 MISNER JR, JAMES T         DD563875006/16/2021

Cleared1,126.920.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD563975006/16/2021

Cleared796.500.001,193.68 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD564075006/16/2021

Cleared488.150.00595.00 PARISH JR., WILLIAM E         DD564175006/16/2021

Cleared529.650.00760.00 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD564275006/16/2021

Cleared322.840.00352.80 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD564375006/16/2021

Cleared182.620.00207.30 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD564475006/16/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD564575006/16/2021

Cleared483.720.00721.60 ZINGER, ADAM          DD564675006/16/2021

Open0.003,371.703,371.70FEDERAL 941          EFT59575006/16/2021

Open0.00175.76175.76MISDU          2318075006/09/2021

Cleared719.210.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD561375006/09/2021

Cleared576.610.00770.56 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD561475006/09/2021

Cleared1,355.220.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD561575006/09/2021

Cleared673.790.00842.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD561675006/09/2021

Cleared430.720.00721.60 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD561775006/09/2021

Cleared262.440.00306.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD561875006/09/2021

Cleared789.390.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD561975006/09/2021

Cleared564.960.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD562075006/09/2021

Cleared558.780.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD562175006/09/2021



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 06/08/2021 to 06/21/2021 

06/17/2021 03:21 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared321.150.00405.00 MISNER JR, JAMES T         DD562275006/09/2021

Cleared932.020.001,382.15 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD562375006/09/2021

Cleared529.630.00760.00 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD562475006/09/2021

Cleared62.510.0070.95 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD562575006/09/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD562675006/09/2021

Cleared565.170.00829.84 ZINGER, ADAM          DD562775006/09/2021

Open0.003,000.993,000.99FEDERAL 941          EFT59275006/09/2021

35

2

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

20,301.926,724.2134,787.28Number of Checks:  037Totals:











 





















City Hall  5814 100th Ave  Evart  49631 
www.evart.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
May 18, 2021 
 
Jim Mills 
State of Michigan 
Community Services Division 
P.O Box 30760 
Lansing, MI 48909 
 
Dear Mr. Mills, 
 
The following is the City's response to the letter received for non-compliance with the 2018 PA 57 
requirements to file an annual financial report dated April 23, 2021. 
 
The Evart LDFA has been dissolved. The City of Evart had a special council meeting on Wednesday, 
January 8, 2020 and voted to dissolve the LDFA.I have included the final minutes from the meeting 
with this decision. 
 
We believe this fulfills our requirements to us by the State of Michigan in a letter dated April 23, 
2021. 
 
Very Truly yours, 
 
City of Evart 
 

 

Pepper L. Lockhart 
Finance Director/Treasurer 

 
o: (231) 734-2181 
pepper.lockhart@evart.org 







Send completed form to:
Treas-StateSharePropTaxes@michigan.gov TIF Plan #

For Fiscal Years 
ending in

Issued pursuant to  2018 PA 57, MCL 125.4911
Filing is required within 180 days of end of 
Authority's fiscal year 2018-2019.

2019
Year AUTHORITY (not TIF plan) was created: 1987

1994

Current TIF plan scheduled expiration date: 2023

Did TIF plan expire in FY19? no

Year of first tax increment revenue capture: 1987

no

If yes, authorization for capturing school tax: Choose from list

Year school tax capture is scheduled to expire:

City of Evart

Annual Report on Status of Tax Increment Financing Plan

DDA

Year TIF plan was created or last amended to 
extend its duration: 

Does the authority capture taxes from local or 
intermediate school districts, or capture the state 
education tax? Yes or no?



Revenue: Tax Increment Revenue

Property taxes - from DDA levy -$                             

Interest -$                             

State reimbursement for PPT loss (Forms 5176 and 4650) -$                             

Other income (grants, fees, donations, etc.) 20,000$                   

Total 20,000$                   

Tax Increment Revenues Received

From counties -$                            

From municipalities (city, twp, village) -$                            

From libraries (if levied separately) -$                            

From community colleges -$                            

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) -$                            

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) -$                            

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) -$                            

From local school districts-operating -$                            

From local school districts-debt -$                            

From intermediate school districts -$                            

From State Education Tax (SET) -$                            

From state share of IFT and other specific taxes (school taxes) -$                            
Total -$                            

Expenditures

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             
-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                             

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                             

-$                             

Total -$                             

Outstanding non-bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                             

Interest -$                             

Outstanding bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                             

Interest -$                             

Total -$                             

Bond Reserve Fund Balance -$                             

Transfers to General Fund



CAPTURED VALUES Overall Tax rates captured by TIF plan

PROPERTY CATEGORY TIF Revenue

Ad valorem PRE Real 42.9276000 $1,085.11 

Ad valorem non-PRE Real 24.9276000 $21,367.91 

Ad valorem industrial personal 24.9276000 ($29,898.16)

Ad valorem commercial personal 24.9276000 ($6,634.46)

Ad valorem utility personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

Ad valorem other personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 0% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 50% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 100% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on industrial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on commercial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property, all other 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax New Facility 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT Replacement Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax Restored Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Neighborhood Enterprise Zone Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Eligible Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank Sale) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Exempt (from all property tax) Real Property 0.0000000 $0.00 

Total Captured Value ($14,079.59) Total TIF Revenue4,470,550$                                            

-$                                           -$                                                          

-$                                           

-$                                           

237,600$                                

-$                                           -$                                                          

-$                                           

-$                                           -$                                                          

-$                                                          

-$                                                          

273,100$                                               

Current Taxable Value

6,501$                                    

-$                                           

-$                                           

-$                                              

-$                                              

-$                                              

-$                                              

-$                                              

-$                                              

Captured ValueInitial (base year) Assessed Value

-$                                              

-$                                              

25,278$                                    

857,199$                                  

-$                                                          -$                                              

(1,199,400)$                              

(266,149)$                                 

-$                                                          

272,650$                                               

1,199,400$                                            

-$                                           

-$                                           -$                                                          

-$                                           

-$                                                          

-$                                           

-$                                                          

-$                                                          

137,278$                                

3,470,599$                             

112,000$                                               

2,613,400$                                            

(618,572)$                                 

-$                                           -$                                              

-$                                              

-$                                           -$                                                          -$                                              

-$                                           -$                                                          

-$                                                          

-$                                           

-$                                              

-$                                              

(35,500)$                                   

-$                                              

-$                                                          



DPW/ Sewer & Water Communications 

 May 2021 

Streets 

• Patched potholes 

• Street light repair 

• Street sign maintenance 

• Paint handicap space at the Lamplighter 

DPW 

• Bagged leaf run 

• Hauled brush 

• City-wide leaf pick up 

• Removed sign at Riverside Park, 

installed sign at cemetery 

• Truck/Equipment maintenance 

• Mower maintenance 

• Weed whipped around Well Houses 

• Removed weed barrier from museum 

garden bed 

• Placed a temporary patch on sinkhole 

on N. Cedar 

Misc. 

• Removed lights from Train Bridge 

• Cleaned workshop, police department 
storage building, and WWTP lab 

• Multiple meetings with Sarah and Kathy 

• Miss-Digs 

• Trash run (once a week) 

• Mowed all City properties not mowed 
by Shades of Green 

• Swept Ventra 

• Installed camera for RSE 
 

Airport 

• Monthly light test 

• Airport inspection preparation  

• Swept Runway 

• Repair lights 

Parks 

• Barrel set up at kayak launch 

• Installed tennis court nets 

• Removed rocks from boat launch 

• Covered graffiti on Rails to Trails 

• Repaired fencing on Rails to Trails 

Water 

• Collected samples for drinking    
 water wells 

• Completed the Monthly Operating 
Report (MOR) 

• Filled day tanks 

• Changed meter on S. Pine 

• Installed new meters in meter pits 

• Installed meter at 548 N. Oak Street, 
528 N. Cedar, 316 W. 9th, High School 
Football Equipment room, North Pine 

• Checked water issue at 304 N. Cherry 

• Repair water leak on 900 block of N. 
Pine, N. Cedar 

• Repair valve box at 225 S. River 

• Meet with SLC for new water meter 
installation 

• Turned on water and flushed lines at 
Splash Pad 

• Repaired pump in Well 9 

• Performed daily well reads 

• Performed water and sewer reads for 
monthly billing  

• Showed Melissa lift station and water 
well for SOP 

• Re-reads of water meters 

• Well maintenance on well 4 
 

Sewer 

• Checked alarm at 11th Street lift station 
(3 times) 

• Checked alarm at 5 Mile lift station (2 
times) 

 
Current Water/Sewer Rates 

• Water Rates: $4.82/1000 gallons 

• Sewer Rates: $9.74/1000 gallons 

• Water RTS Fee: $6.50 

• Sewer RTS Fee: $14.00

 



SEWER ELECTRIC COST (CURRENT MONTHS USAGE 
COMPARED TO PAST ANNUAL COSTS)

2021
DIFFERENCE/SAVINGS

6,264.48$                           
$1,002.66

4,370.83$                           
$168.47

7,267.14$                           4,539.30$                           

SEWER ELECTRIC COST COMPARED TO PRIOR TWO YEARS 
(MONTH BY MONTH)

ELECTRIC COMPARISON REVIEW FOR MAY 2020-2021
WATER SEWER

2020

 $-

 $1,000.00

 $2,000.00

 $3,000.00

 $4,000.00

 $5,000.00

 $6,000.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2019 2020 2021

$40,402.90 $39,686.42 

$21,192.99 

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

1

2019 2020 2021

2



23.4070

15.6160

20.6560

20.0020

20.0240

19.3830

20.4680

21.0500

18.5570

19.6270

17.7300

18.4150

20.9370

19.1860

19.4150

19.1240

19.8620

16.0730

19.6920

18.5470

16.5130

16.8060

15.0990

15.5560

16.6800

15.0380

14.7290

9.4280

12.6300

18.6160

20.8760

19.7690

18.0880

16.9430

15.4550

16.4190

16.0730

14.8850

15.9340

15.6320

16.7120

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000 10.0000 20.0000 30.0000 40.0000 50.0000 60.0000 70.0000 80.0000 90.0000

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

Monthly Water Pumpage for 2018 - 2021 (in million gallons)

2018 2019 2020 2021

234.9350

216.8100

194.6710

79.2360

0.0000

50.0000

100.0000

150.0000

200.0000

250.0000

2018 2019 2020 2021

Annual Water Pumpages 2018 - 2021 Current Months Usage 
Compared to Past Annual Pumpages (in million gallons)

3



 

 

Evart Police Department 

Monthly Report 

May 2021 

 

Trainings 

All officers attended Emergency Vehicle Operations (for SUVs) training at Delta College. 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Swift-Eckert completed her bi-annual Terminal Agency Coordinator for Law 

Enforcement certification. Topics covered include security, access, review of record entry, record validation process, 

training and employment requirements, and the audit process, in addition to other relevant topics. 

Chief John Beam Jr. and Officer Higgins attended a legal update meeting at the Osceola County Sheriff’s Department 

that covered the new misdemeanor arrest law.  The new law restricts which misdemeanor crimes are arrestable 

offenses without having additional circumstances.  The offenders are issued appearance citations in lieu of arrest, so 

they are still required to appear in court.  

Law Enforcement Information Network/Criminal Justice Information System Audit 

This audit is conducted on all law enforcement agencies at least once every three years.  It reviews our current 

protection policies, physical and digital, to insure we are compliant with CJIS requirements. We are working on a few 

minor items where we were found to be out of compliance, but no security problems were found.  These items will be 

corrected in June, prior to the deadline set by LEIN Field Services.  

Personnel 

Chief Beam interviewed several candidates for the full-time officer job opening.  The applicants were narrowed down 

to one candidate who has been given a conditional offer of employment. His background investigation is currently 

underway, and his official hire date is pending the outcome of the investigation. 

Community Events 

Officers assisted with traffic control during the parade of 2021 Graduates of Evart Area High School. The Evart 

Police Department wishes the Senior Class of 2021 the best in their future endeavors.  

 

 

Department Roster 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Police Officer Ryan Douglas 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 

Reserve Officer Daniel Winters 39-14 

 

 



Crime Report 

TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 68 

Douglas, Ryan 27 

Higgins, JJ 149 

McClure, Patrick 116 

TOTAL: 360 

 

ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Douglas, Ryan 0 

Higgins, JJ 0 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 2 

TOTAL: 2 

 

 

ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 15 

Assist DHS 1 

Assist Evart Public School 7 

Assist OCSD 11 

Assist Police Agency 1 

TOTAL: 35 

ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - Hit and Run 1 

TOTAL: 1 

 



TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS  

OFFICER Traffic 

Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop Verbal 

Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 1 0 

Higgins, JJ 1 0 

McClure, Patrick 2 1 

TOTAL: 4 1 

 

ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS  

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

McClure, Patrick Ordinance Citation 1 

TOTAL: 1 

 

The Evart Police Department issued 39 Ordinance Violation Notices in the month of May.  A total of 72 notices have 

been issued since the beginning of April.     

















EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Tuesday May 11th, 2021 8:00 AM 

200 S Main St, Evart MI 49631 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order  

2. Attendance  

3. Introduction of Guests  

4. Citizen Comments  

5. Approval of Agenda  

6. Approval of April 13th, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

7. Approval of May 4th, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes  

8. Approval of Vendor List for April 2021  

9. President’s Comments  

10. Director’s Comments 

11. City Manager’s Comments  

12. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 
a. Farmers Market 
b. Pop-Up 
c. Business Recruitment Primer 

 
Design 

a. Benches/Bike Racks 
b. WayFinding Signage 

 

Promotion 
a. Role Clarification 
b. Shop Local Days 

 
Organization 

a. Board Recruiting 
i. Applications 



13. Old Business 
a. Board Appointments Schmidt & O’Dell 
b. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 
c. Summer Concert Series Contracts/Line-up 

 
14. New Business  

a. Fiscal Budget 2021-2022 
b. Interview Committee 

15. Citizen’s Comments  

16. Adjournment  

  



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday, April 13th, 2020 8:00 AM 

Via Zoom 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. The meeting was called to order by Bengry at 8:00 a.m. via zoom. 
 

2. Attendance:   
Present:  Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Shannon Schmidt 
Absent:  Sarah Dvoracek, Jason O’Dell 
 

3. Introduction of Guests: Angela Hunter, John Hunter, Eric Kehoe, Lauri Chase 
 

4. Citizens Comments:  None 
 

5. Approval of Agenda – as presented 
 

6. Approval of March 9th, 2021 Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Schmidt, supported by Essner to approve the March 9th, 2021 minutes as presented. 
Ayes:  5                                  Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 
 

7. Approval of March 11th, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Salinas, supported by Schmidt to approve the March 11th, 2021 minutes as presented. 
Ayes:  5                                  Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 
 

8. Approval of Vendor List for March 2021 
Moved by Essner, supported by Cataldo to approve the March Vendor List in the amount of 
$3,512.72 for the DDA and $0.00 for the Farmers Market. 
Ayes:  5    Nays:  0  Results:  Carried 
 

9. President’s Comments:  OCF Grant for SBEI discussed 
 

10. Director’s Comments: See Director’s Report 
 

11. City Manager’s Comments:  None 
 

12. Committee Updates: 
Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market – Attorney review found no issues with the Farmers Market Manager’s 
Contract. 

Moved by Cataldo, supported by Schmidt to approve the EFM contract and job description.  
Ayes:  5                                  Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 

 
b. Pop-Up – Advertising on website, FB and in newsletter for new pop-up vendor. 



c. Business Recruitment Primer – Data and Demographics being collected.  New Business 
packet being developed. 

 
Design 

a. Benches & Bike Racks – First bike rack built by Ferris student is on it’s way.  DDA will 
only need to pay for materials.  Kehoe and Essner will look for information on benches in 
files. 

b. Wayfinding Signage – Application is at MDOT.  Priorities include Continuity of design 
and identifying parking.   
 

Promotion 
a. Summer Concert Series – Jake Slater scheduled for Aug 14, 2021 during the EFM. 

Cataldo and Schmidt have a phone meeting with Tony Garcia of  Michigan Main Street 
to clarify the role and direction of the Promotion Committee under the MMS Four Point 
Approach. 

b. Shop Local Days – 
 
Organization 

a. Board Recruitment – An application has been received for one of the vacant seats.  
Kehoe will forward to the board. 
 

13. Old Business: 
a. Market Manager Job Description and Contract- Addressed during Committee Report 
b. Board Appointments Schmidt & O’Dell – Hunter mentioned it was taken care of in the 

last Council Meeting.  Essner to verify with City Clerk. 
c. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan – The DDA and City Council will 

be having a joint meeting on Thursday, April 15, 2021 from 6 pm to 8 pm via Zoom.  
Jessica Wood of Dickinson & Wright will present to both boards 
regarding RECODIFIED TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT Public Act 57 of 2018 

d. Summer Concert Series - Addressed during Committee Report  
 

14. New Business: 
 

15. Citizens Comments:  None 
 

16. Adjournment: 
Moved by Cataldo, supported by Schmidt toadjourn the meeting at 8:57 a.m. 
Ayes:  5                                   Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 
 

Minutes submitted by June-Marie Essner, Secretary 

 

 



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday, May 4th, 2020 8:00 AM 

Via Zoom 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. The meeting was called to order by Bengry at 8:00 a.m. via zoom. 
 

2. Attendance:   
Present:  Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Jason O’Dell, Shannon 
Schmidt, Sarah Dvoracek 
 

3. Introduction of Guests: Angela Hunter, Eric Kehoe 
 

4. Citizens Comments:  None 
 

5. Approval of Agenda – as presented 
 

6. New Business 
a. Moved by Cataldo, supported by O’Dell to accept Director Eric Kehoe’s resignation 

effective May 27, 2021.  
Ayes:  7                                  Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 

b. Discussion on Job Posting and interview process.  Dvoracek will provide past posting and 
post position upon review by DDA Board. Interview committee will consist of Caltaldo, 
Essner, Schmidt, Dvoracek with Salinas as an alternate. Kehoe suggested some interview 
questions and procedures to help streamline the process. 

c. Work session for a smooth transition is scheduled for May 25th, 2021.  
 

7. Citizens Comments:  None 
 

8. Adjournment: 
Moved by Essner, supported by Cataldo that the meeting be adjourned at 8:28 a.m. 
Ayes:  7                                   Nays:  0                           Result:  Carried 
 

Minutes submitted by June-Marie Essner, Secretary 

 

 

 

 





BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page:05/10/2021 03:30 PM
User: PEPPER
DB: City Of Evart

Period Ending 04/30/2021

                                     Fund 248 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

53,071.77 CASH248-000-001.000
4,832.33 FARMERS MARKET248-000-003.807

116,190.96 SAVINGS248-395-002.000
20.45 PETTY CASH248-395-004.000

174,115.51 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

69.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE248-000-202.000
(84.01)DUE TO STATE TAXES248-000-256.000
461.35 FARMERS MARKET VENDORS248-000-277.000

1,317.00 DUFB - DOUBLE UP FOOD BUCKS248-000-277.100
(0.03)ACCRUED EMPLOYER TAX PAYABLE 248-395-258.000

7,454.13 DEFERRED REVENUES248-395-339.000

9,217.44 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

56,109.27 FUND BALANCE248-395-390.000
73,667.29 UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS248-395-395.000

129,776.56 Total Fund Balance

129,776.56 Beginning Fund Balance

35,121.51 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
164,898.07 Ending Fund Balance
174,115.51 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/2Page:05/10/2021 03:28 PM
User: PEPPER
DB: City Of Evart PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 04/30/2021

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2021

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2020-21

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST-REVENUE248-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES248-395-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PPT REIMBURSEMENT248-395-405.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DUFB GRANT248-395-481.000
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 STATE GRANTS- OTHER248-395-569.000

88.32 6,424.61 0.00 48,575.39 55,000.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE248-395-573.000
11.88 616.83 7.07 83.17 700.00 INTEREST-REVENUE248-395-665.000
100.00 (861.00)0.00 861.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE248-395-685.000
77.20 228.00 250.00 772.00 1,000.00 RENT REVENUE248-395-685.801
104.75 (190.00)0.00 4,190.00 4,000.00 PROMO PROJECTS REVENUE248-395-685.802

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ORGANIZATION PROJECTS REV GALA248-395-685.803
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 MMS PLEDGES-CITY CONTRIBUTION248-395-685.804

99.72 79.30 8,250.00 28,220.70 28,300.00  IND/CORPORATE DONATIONS248-395-685.805
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GARDEN MAIN. (IN-KIND CONTRIBUTION)248-395-685.806

258.23 (2,373.50)0.00 3,873.50 1,500.00 FARMERS MARKET REVENUE248-395-685.807
16.70 3,332.00 0.00 668.00 4,000.00 EVENT DONATIONS REV248-395-685.808
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON CORPORATE DONATIONS REV248-395-685.809
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON (CONCERT DAY DONATIONS) REV248-395-685.810

100.00 (945.00)0.00 945.00 0.00 SUMMER CONCERT SERIES GRANT REVENUE248-395-685.811
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON MEDIA ADVERSTISING TRADE IN KIND248-395-685.812

68.10 41,311.24 8,507.07 88,188.76 129,500.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

68.10 41,311.24 8,507.07 88,188.76 129,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MERCHANT CARD FEES248-000-881.000
100.00 (19.65)0.00 19.65 0.00 FARMERS MARKET MISC EXPENSE248-000-955.807

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-EXPENSE248-000-956.000

100.00 (19.65)0.00 19.65 0.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
55.84 15,918.83 3,865.38 20,131.17 36,050.00 SALARIES248-395-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SAL/WAGES, PT248-395-707.000
0.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 CASH-IN-LIEU248-395-710.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HEALTH INSURANCE248-395-716.000
0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 RETIREMENT248-395-718.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS248-395-719.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE 248-395-720.000

46.01 118.78 4.00 101.22 220.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.248-395-723.000
0.00 950.00 0.00 0.00 950.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION248-395-724.000

78.29 162.81 0.00 587.19 750.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES248-395-727.000
100.00 (359.97)50.00 359.97 0.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES248-395-740.000
100.00 (63.15)0.00 63.15 0.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING248-395-741.000
16.02 12,597.50 0.00 2,402.50 15,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES248-395-801.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/2Page:05/10/2021 03:28 PM
User: PEPPER
DB: City Of Evart PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 04/30/2021

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2021

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2020-21

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Expenditures

94.16 155.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,655.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES248-395-803.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 DDA LEGAL SERVICES248-395-804.000

72.00 175.00 0.00 450.00 625.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES248-395-807.000
100.00 (1,754.69)326.40 1,754.69 0.00 COMMUNICATIONS248-395-850.000
92.08 395.87 378.92 4,604.13 5,000.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES248-395-860.000
0.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS248-395-880.000
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 FACADE GRANTS248-395-880.101

51.24 1,828.50 0.00 1,921.50 3,750.00 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS248-395-880.102
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GARDENS248-395-880.103

100.00 (499.92)499.92 499.92 0.00 UNCOMMITTED DESIGN PROJECTS (FUTURE)248-395-880.104
100.00 (4,208.26)0.00 4,208.26 0.00 SHOP LOCAL (VITALITY PROJECT)248-395-880.105
21.64 1,332.15 0.00 367.85 1,700.00 MARKETING & COMMUN(ORGANIZATION PROJECT)248-395-880.106
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GALA FUNDRAISER(FUTURE UNCOMMITTED PROJ)248-395-880.107
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MAIN STREET MIXERS (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.108

100.00 (3,595.00)0.00 3,595.00 0.00 SUM CONCERT SERIES (EXISTING PROJECTS)248-395-880.109
100.00 (25.00)0.00 25.00 0.00 FARMERS MARKET (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.110

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EVENT SPONSORSHIP (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.111
33.00 335.00 0.00 165.00 500.00 EVART BUCKS (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.112
100.00 (377.84)0.00 377.84 0.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING248-395-900.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE248-395-912.000
43.77 1,518.29 199.31 1,181.71 2,700.00 UTILITIES248-395-921.000
100.00 (110.00)0.00 110.00 0.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE248-395-930.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT248-395-932.000
97.88 14.85 0.00 685.15 700.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE248-395-955.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING248-395-957.000

36.11 9,583.69 0.00 5,416.31 15,000.00 PROJECT COSTS 248-395-967.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED248-395-970.100

43.85 65,942.44 5,323.93 51,507.56 117,450.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
37.42 488.09 56.05 291.91 780.00 MEDICARE248-850-714.000
41.69 1,745.87 239.65 1,248.13 2,994.00 SOCIAL SECURITY 248-850-715.000

40.81 2,233.96 295.70 1,540.04 3,774.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

43.78 68,156.75 5,619.63 53,067.25 121,224.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

424.38 (26,845.51)2,887.44 35,121.51 8,276.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

43.78 68,156.75 5,619.63 53,067.25 121,224.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
68.10 41,311.24 8,507.07 88,188.76 129,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:




















	8855c10a-044e-4b68-a3de-6b688ddbd82e.pdf
	Annual Report
	Specific Taxes capture


